
EXECUTIVE SE SIrON

IN THE MATTER OF:

SPECIAL INTERVIEW TO INVESTIGATE
FEDERAL HOUSING ADMINISTRATION

PLACE: Washington, D. C.

DATE: June 18, 1954

P. M. SESSION
PAGES: 283 - 347

Columbia Reporting Company
Official Reporters

939 D Street, N, W.
Washington 4, D. C.

REpublic 7-3601

-- ------ -- ~--- ---- ---- --------- -- ~- --- _-1--~11-~1~-, 1- --

- --- ~ ----------- ----- -- - --------- -- - ----- -~-------~ - --
--~---- -u--~--.~---.-I ---- -- --- -~~-.. ~..~. . .~ ~ ~~~ ~I____ ~_ ~~ --- :---r;-----------



pnh 283

Hunt
Hu~an SPECIAL INTERVIEW TO InVTETIGATE

FEDERAL HOUSING ADMINISTRATION

Room F-59,
'United States Capitol,
Washingtacns, DJ . Cwo.
FridaysJuno 18o 19541

The hearing reoonvenedo pirsuant to recess, at 2:00

o'clock pem, in Rom -59, tUnited States Capitol*

PRESNIT% Senators Capeshezt and Benett; Mr. Willita

Simon, General Counsel, Senate Banking and Currvenc7 Comitteee

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Fred C0; Tpnp, 8931 161s3t Street Jamaica, New

Mra Mattheiv J. Tosti, 8931 161st Street, jamaQa.p

New Yorke

Mr, Orrin Go Jtidds 655 Madison Avenue, New York, Now

York, appearing for Mr. Fred C, TrImp and M, Matthew J# Tat.tle
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1Kr. Simon, Mr. Trump, what is your connectn witr

Beach Haven Apartments, Inc.s?

Mr-o Tramp I am Pr'esident of Boach Raven Apartments.

14r S imon. Who are the stockholders of Beach Haven?

Mr.' Trump, Fred C. Tivinp and William Tomasello.

?e, 81cor Roughly speaking, vhatt 49roportion of the stock

do you own?

Mr. Tzlp, Frezd Tzrumpo 75 per Cent j William T"as.llc

25.

M'r, Simon, Does Beach Navet Apartments, Inoup own ma y other,

property than the building development that it financed under

Section 608 of the Housing Act?

MIa Trump a, Yea o

Mr. Simon, What does it own beside?

Mr. Tostio What do you. mean by Uproperty"?

Mr. Simons I assume it has a bank account and som1e

office furniture,,

Mr* Tosti., Yese

Senator r3flentt,. Wa the corporation created for' purposes

of 608?

Xr, Toisti, Yea*

Mr. Triuimpa And other similar 6081a, I would imagine,.

Mr * Simon * Does Beach Havsn Apartments, Inc. have other'

608 prolects than the one?
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Mr. Judd. If I can interject here, there are several

coorpoations which form the Beach Haven Unit.

Mr. Simon. How many separate corporations?

Mr. Judd. Six separate corporations.

Mr. Simmn. Is the stock ownership the same?

Mr, Trump. Same, Beach Haven 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6,

stock ownership, the same. That occurred due to the F.H.A.

limitation.The mortgage couldn't be a different amount, and

due to the suite location, twio suites, the lodgings would have

been larger than the regulations provided for.

Mr. Simon) You obtained F.H.A, mortgages totalling

$15,922,900 in the six corporations, is that right?

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Toati*

are wrong.

Mr. Simon.

Mr. Tosti.

something.

Mr. Add,

Mr. Tonti.

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Tosti,

Mr. Simon.

could find it.

Yes.

It is a little more than that. Those figures

What is the right figure?

I think the right figure is 16 million-

I have the individual figures.

There was six separate corporations.

Approximately 16 million.

About 16 million-some-odd,

I would like to come back to that if you

XI the real estate on which these buildings

are located owned by the corporations?

I. u
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Mr. Trump

Kra. Simon

Mr. Trump

Company 40 Wa

Mrs Tostl

mr. Simon

Mr. Trump

I believe 1944

Mr, Simon

Mr.* Trump~

Mr, Simon

Mr . Trump

it over to the

Mr, Toatit

Mr. Trump4

Mr. Judd*

Hr.P Trump4

Mr. Judd.

the balance up

Mre. Trump4

uwderlwater ti.t)

285

No, 99-year leasehold*

* Who ownst3 the real estate?

*A trt, of which the Bank of Mahattan

Ll Street, Now York City$ is

S One of the -trustees*

o Who are the beneficiariee of the trust?

a The twttst created by me for my children,

* When did you acquire the land?

* Before the terminat ion of World War 11,

or 1945t the early part,

0 What did you pay for the lend?

0 1 dontt know,,

a Whst is your best estimate?

41 d=nOt kniow* We bought it in 1944o 1 buned

children, I believe, In --

s 19494

1948 or 1949,

Weren't there several prohaes?

pYes,

The major part waa bought in 19J4, 1945a and

to about 1947?

Something like that. We had some bad title,

e or Oreeka or aimathing like that. Xt took

several years to clean up the title,

Kra Judd. These facts aren't on the books of the
corporation. W 1 d ciio)O.h of a job aaieenburg facbs

_s~l~e~k~ ~
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about six corporations.

Mr. Simon. What is your best recollection, Mr. Thomp,

of what you paid for it?

Mr. Trump. I don't know,

Mr. Simon. Is it less than a half million dollars?

Mr. Trump. I dcrft know what it is. I do know this:

The land at the present time is assessed, I believe, at

one million six, or one million seven.

Mr. Tostio $1,350,000.

Mr. Trump. $1,350,000.

Mr. Tosti. I think we have a sheet on the assessed

valuations.

Mr. Simon. I am trying to get what you paid for it.

Mr. Trump. I don't know. That a whil e we were in

Japan I bought that.

Mr. Simon. You have no recollection?

Mr. Trump. No,

Mr. Simon. You wouldn't know wheheer it was more or less

than a half million dollars?

Mr. Trump. No.

M~r Simon. In 1949, you gave the land to your children

in trust?

Mr. Trumpo Yes,

Mr. Siman, Did you file a gift tax return on that?

Mr. Trmpo, dido

0

0

~-iliiCliiiiiS-~~i~ Islsl -"~~L
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M*-a 8c15on* What was the value placed on the land for

the gift tax?

Mr. Trump, I don't know,

Mr, S1Pion* Did 7ou have an independent appraisal made

of the land for gift tax purposes?

Mr * Trtnpa That is right*,

Mr.P Simon* Do you have any Idea wchat tihat value was?

Mr. Trump. Ko, I don't,

V. SIMmen Do you krnow hetlnear It was more or loe than

a half millIon dolla-ra?

Mrpw Trump* I doit have ths figures,, I wouldn't know.

Mr. Simon. Would you be wlllin'C.to give ua a copy of the

gift tax return an d a copy of' the appraisal?

Mr, T'rumpo Yes, I think Inernal Revenue choked the

gift tax return and I believe at that time we paid additional

tax, is that right?

Mr. Totio 'tat to right,

Mr. Judd o Voaldn I t it be better it we give you the

figures on whioh the land value wae adjusted by the Bweau of
Internal Revenue?

Mro 82.mou, I would be happy to have them both,

Mr,, Trump, I would say.-Mre Judd# our assessed value

is probably more ptineIt" than anything we bought in 194, 1

think the assessed value has mioz'e bearing on what asn* is

worth,
Mr. Simon*, Wo would be happy t.0 have tChat,, too# but we

-I * r now
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would like to know what you paid for it and what it was

valued for at the time of the gift.

SMr. Judd. Can I give you this table of assessed values

now?

Mr. Simon. When did you file the application for the

F.H.A. commitment?

Mr. Trump. Probably in April or May, 1949.

Mr. Simon. What was the basis on which F.H.Ao appraised

the land, or what was the FH.A. appraisal of the land?

Mr. Trumpo The basis? I donOt know exactly what you mean,

Their committee --

Mr. Simon. I take it inthe course of your negotiations

: with FP..A, the owners of the land gave them an option to

purchase at an appraised figure?

Mr. TIrump. I donut know.

Mr. Tost i He meats what is the recapture.

Mr, Trompo No, F.H.A. have their own ormittee who

appraises the land and whatever they appraise it for, that is

the figure,

Mr, Simon, That is wlat I am trying to find out. What

is that figure?

) Mr. Trump. I think it is $1.13 per square foot.

Mr. Simon. What is the total value FH..A, put on the

Mr. Trump. That I d ent t ;ow.

ii~ i II ~_ ' I
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Mr* Judd. I aan tell1 you about that The F H.A. 2n

Its comttmexite showed the square foot area and the square

foot value on each parel and from that we could coMpute

a total*

Mr. urmp What Is the gred rent, Mr. Judd? In that i

the f ieuS7

Mr. Judd. The~ greuxwc m'nt is3 fomewhare In here*

Mr. Trumpo Fioudyp I: vou~ld say it Is46O1OOO ayer

It might b~e three or four tho 3aindo more or~ less,

Mr. Slrmonx Isn't tho rgvounxd rent four per cent of the

FX.A, appraised value of t~he lanxd?

Mra Truimps I think it la based on f u per cents yes.

Mr, Simon. 60,,000 would mean

Mr. Trump* Roughly 60,000. In other words that would

be four per cent i~f 60,0000 Is roughly one million and a

Mr, Tostis That is rights

Mr* Simon. Who biu.lt the building that is on thi land?

Mr, Trump* Beach Haven Aprtments, I to 6.

Mrs Simon*. Waz thOer a tractor?

Mr. Trump. No.

Mr. Simon. The earporatio was its nZ oontraotor?

Mrs Trump. That is rlaht yes*

Mr. SiM . What moutat of money did the corporation expend

for cotatruction of? the bt~ilding?
M1Vr. Ve have t-hat-, -'hciarhh you might asc for its

6~_
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We have been reading stories, so we thought that would be

very pertinent.

Mr. Judd. I donit kno', Senator, I supposeymu don't

see the Brooklyn Eagle.

Senator Bennett. No, I don't.

Mr. Judd. We got a frmot-page item about Mr. Tramp when

the report came out last Saturday which accuses him of pokeeting

four million dollars, which we thought was a very unfair state-

ment because In the first place he didn't get anything, any

money out of these

aMr Simson You were going to give me the figaresm

Mr. Judd. Here are figures on the six Beach Haven

Apartments.

Mr.

we invest

Mr.

Mr,

Mr.

Mr.

with the

M, I

Judd,

Trump.

in the

Tosti.

Judd.

Simon.

Tosti.

P .H .A

Simon

Are they cash investements or loans?

No. These are the total costs, computed as --

I believe the question was how much cash did

corporations, is that right?

No.

I though t it was how much cash was spent.

For the construction of the building.

These figures show the construction, togethe

allowable fees.

Is the first figure in each case, IMr. Trump,

the amount of money which the corporation paid for the

construotion of the bxildMrn? .

V

_~__ __ ~ I I in

V
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Mr. Taump.

pense, is shown

Mr. Simon.

Mr. Truap.

Mr. Simon*

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Simon.

Mr. Trump.

Mr Simon.

291

The first figure, physical construction ex-

on 1951-1952 income tax return.

You say, including architect's fees --

Yes.

Who is the architect on that building?

You mean the name of the architect?

Yes

Seelig and Finkelstein.

How much were they paid as an architect's

fee for that Vbilding?

Mr. Tramp, We paid roughly five-eights of a point.

Mr. Simcn. How much architect fee is included i. the

figure $3,216,703?

Mr. Judd. Which one is that?

Mr. Tosti, This is one section. Let's take the entire

Job. V '

Mr. Simon. What I am trying to find out is whether you

included architet's fees based on five per cent, or whether

you included them on the basis of what you actually paid?

Mr. Tosti. In here it is on the basis of what we actually

paid. Down below is the differential allowable by F.HA.

Mr. Simon, Thatis 188,000?

Mr. Tosti. That is right. In here ia the actual.

Mr. Judd. If you look c N o 1, I think there is about

21,000 included.

0

_
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Mr. Tostiv That muha s Included In the first Iteh

for the actual paid-outs.

Mr. Sin.oii So the $3,21i6000 tigue is the amncmt of

Adaksmoney whih the Beach Haven Apartents, No. 1 , Ince, actually

paid for the Oonstruetion of the building?

Mr. Toti, That is right*

Mr, Judd. That e phygleal conatcation without

these other elements of cost,

Mr, Simon. $188,770 at the bottom Is the architect's

fee allowed by ?.X.,A,, but that you didn t ever pay anybody?

?4z'. Tosti. That is correct.

Mr, Simaon* I taCe It the $199,781 buildergB fee Is scmethitgS

you didn't evre pay anybody?

Mr. Tostia That is rights

Mr. Simfon*n this case, Mr. Trumps you did not put

the real estate Into the corporation and the building was

built on a leasehold?

Mrs Trumpa That Is rights

Mr,, Simon* Xe the reason that you were abile to build

the building for a lower cash outlay than the amount of the

mortgage because -you were allowed five per cent for achitetb

fees and fivre per cent for builder's fees and didn't have to

pay but fivo-eighths of one per cent of that?

Mr Trumrp* No# I wouldn't say that,,

Senator Benett* Because obviously on the face of this
after the bulder's fce and the btalace off the arohitea' Se 9e
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is included, the total is less by 124,000 than the net

amount of the mortgage.
;s Mr. Simon. What I was trying to inquire, Senator, is

the original application that they filed with F.H.A. had to

show that the mortgage that they were getting was only 90

per cent of the estimated cost of oanstruotion and I was

trying to find out how they could end up with the actual cost

of construction, so much less than the estimated cost of

construction.

You see, the actual coat of construction a $3,216,000, and

the mortgage was $4, 1 40,000, so there is an 800 or 900 thousand

e dollar difference there.

Senator annett. Part of these other figures in there

represent apparently allowable --

Mr. Trumpo According to the regulations.

Senator Bennett* Things they could add o t he physical

a aatruction

Mr. Judd. I think it is true the estimate of physical

Construction coat and the estimates of the other items are

computed by the appraisers for F.H.A.and were included at

I the figures that we have shown here on the project aalysis

Prepared by P*.IA. at the time they issued the ooaaitment,

[ Senator Bennett. In other words these figures appeared

on their analysis of th e project?
Mr. Trumpo That is riht,

~~ I_
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Mr. Tosti. Except with respeot to the actual amout of

physical construction ooat, there may be a variable from

theirs.

Senator Bennett. That is right$ but the B.H.A. fee,

real estate taxe8, interest on the building loan and the

insurance and miscellaneous, there were at least same figures

on their analysis that corresponded with those?

Mr,. Judd. Yes. Actually, the fig ues on their aalyasi

may have been a little smaller in those iteme because these

buildings were constructed rore rapidly than was required

and consequently the building loan was advanced faster and we

had more interest to pay and more taxes.

Mro Trump I would say the big reason for the difference

is the fact that these contracts were given out during a

four-month period when there was a recession, prior to XoErea,

and we got some vidioulously low figures for a very short tmaeo

To explain that, our lumber from the West Coast miat be

stamped in the New York area, number one. Every pie e must

have a number one stamp0  We bought at $69 a thousand, six

and a half million feet. We divided that, three reaponsitle

lumber yards, each one sold u3 two and a quarter million

feet. We signed a contract for lumber probably in September.

The following June, while they were still eliver1rng one

of the three yards went broke ard we had to pay $110 to finish

his contract. The other fellow would have gone out of business

N mlliiii~ U~'~~ i I
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if we had instated on his $69 a thousand contract for hia two

and a quarter million feet.

We voluntarily upped him six months later to $95 a

thousand,but the first fellow delivered his two and a quarter

million feet and he supplied the balanae of this third fellows

contract who went broke, at the current market price, which

was $110, and I believe in my opinion -- I am a boulder, I

don't know much about FP.HA. forms, but I believe that was the

reason this money was left, due to favorable purchases.

Now, we bought elevators. These are elevator apartments,

not two-story buildings. F.H.A. doesnOt recognize that an

elevator apartment costs more money than a two-atory. They

had the 8100 maximum mortgage on a three and a half room

average. We contend, and I think everyze does, that an

elevator apartment costs more money. The first floor must

be fireproof instead of wood floor beam. A two-sto7r

building, everything is wood floor beams. We must put elevators

in there. We put inoinerators in the hall. You walk in the

hall, open a door and throw your garbage down a ohute in a sx-

story building. That cost money. The type contract that

works on a six-atory building is a better type, he is not

, the small contractor that would do a two-story job. P.H.A.

didn't consider that and allowed us no more than any other

six-atory builder, the same 8100 mazxim mortgage.

We bought elevators on that particular job -- price
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don't mean anything to yoe--but we bought 31 elevators. This

particular Beach Haven Job has 31 elevators at $7750 an

elevator. Even a laymian would understand that is low. Today

they ares l0,300. At that times just a month before they

were $9pOOO

senator Bennet. Do you think ?f.A. calculated yar

costs by alculating of Standard price per apartment and

multiplying it by the nwuber of apa tents you had?

Mr4 Trumpa No. I believe tV-ey took a real cost break-

down, but a four-month rooesion -happened practically at the

time we got the commitment, from the time we got the oanit-

ment -- that in mXy opinion is one reaeono

There its oe other reasons We build very efficiently

and very fast. We have potures here to prove that. Probably

every builder will tell you the same thing.

Senator Bennett. I think maybe while this thing is broken

I had better get upstairs.

Kra Judd. I would like to have you look at these pituzre

of what we did, Senator, It will look like a creditable Job.

It is one of the best apartment units in the whole of drooklyn.

Mr. Trump. That is Coney Ieland EHospital. Coney Zland

S . Hospital is here. That ais the hospital and that is the hospital.

Here to the project. The project is right in this area

This airplane view was taken Oatober 2, 1949 , by a recogied
airplane outfit. This e September# 1950. That would be eleven

Ill]i~l~iidllsi~r~rlai-li iiiilllpi I- - .- -- -;;- --.-t~~-. - -- -- --;-------~
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months later, The project is entirely complete pi'atioglly,

with this section ooupieds That out doim otur taxes, oir

interest and mortgage, $6,.4O,QO i a year*.

Mrva Toti. It is a trifici costruatiof.

Senator Bennett*. t is quite a place all rights

14ro Tostio This io one of the Mosxrst j3obs in New Yolk,

MZ. Trp. The f Siest job on the FX.&. book,

8enator Bennett* I will un upstairs and let youm gS On.

I really didn't mean to interrupt you.

Mr Judde, Maybe.1 can jus3t mention on the record here,

Mr. Simoan that during the timie you wera on the telephone,

the Senator was aboutt to leaves and we s1towsd him two phtowm

graphs, one sholzg what Is practically bare land va October 2,

1949$ about the time that our oomitment was gained# ad th~e other

showing the practically finlhed nzts In aa airplane pheot

graph of Sept eber 170 1950, with even the lanadscaping

mnplated on am$ of themn, ust to ahow this was an eftictot

andy I believe, a gocod-ooking project and something that

dlR.Ao should bs glad we helped them conatttat,

Mr. Simon* Mr. Trump, I understand that the actual

Cost of conatriaotion on these ax corporations, and I haven't
added the figures up here,0 but I am assuming that they Will1

add to some ere between 12 and 12* million dollars, is that

right?

r.v Trtump% No.,

Ull~5~~3
_~_____II_ __~_~_ _Iji__~___ _ ____ _~

I ~
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Mr. Judd* I am not sure what you mean by "actual cost

of construction "

Mr. Simone, Physical construction expense you term it

here@

Mra Judd. You mean exaludlng builders f£ea architects

ee taxes, interests F*HiA. ifee3 1 and legal fees?

Mrs Simon* I don't mean to exelude any builder's or

architect 's fee~ that were paid, but I was talking abut atual

Oo08~t meY.

MXr Tmmp# Interesit and construction you want to include

also, Interest duzving construction?

Mr# Simon. I takce it that you yourself' for reasons best

known to you, considered interest during constructioa as &a

operating expense and not as a building cost * is that rioit?

Mrs Trump, We still had to pay It during construction,

though*

Mr. 8imonw I understand, but you did consider it as an

operating expense.4

Mr * Judd, I am not- ure what ycu m ean by the word £

considerr." It youaz n did we treat it on our Inamze tax

returns

Mr. Simono Yeas

Mrs Judd. Or claim it as a deduction -

Mr. Twmp. We don't want any trick figures on cost*

We had to pay the bank on every advance duing construction,
____________P -Y



phI8 299

That money should be allocated toward cot of constr'iictiouj

whether the governmenX t allows you to do another thig# but

when you talk oost of construction, It would be far in excess
of your $l2,000O0*

Mr. Simon* You yourself considered the interest as on

operating expense in yourz9 own inoome tax return, didn't you?

ro Judd, Would you be willing to say you claimed them as a

deduotion from income in your retrn?

Mr. Trump, It was probably our prerogative to do tatp

but thati n'Zt actual cost of co ntruction because we arast pay

Interest on all advaneeso

Mr., Toati, For the purpose of the mortgage, it was

aensidered as part of and to be paid out of mortgage proceeds

Mr& Trump, The regulations added to the cost of cmostruction

also, the FoI.A4. reagucatnso

Mr, Simon* I quickly added up these six items here

and if my mental addition Is right, It Is 13 M1f11io 2,
roughly speakingp for your physical contruetion expense

whLch is about one million dollars higher than the figz'e

F*H*A. used in the release Mr. Judld referred to. Do you

1mow what the reaso ist for that difference? They showed

$2,325oOOO.

Mr. Tonti. I don't know what that release is jIuppoaed

to mean * We would like ami~ec to explain "..o us just

_II --- ------ ~ ,, I i I a __ .__~.C1~-*



phl9 300

to $729,000.

Mr. Judd * We haven't tried to audit the figures in this

F.Hs.RA release* Some of them appear to be erroneous to

us; whether the partcu&? one yrou are referring to or where

the Particular one you referred to 1 reported as oost of

proJect came from, I can 't say*

Mr. Simon. I take it at start of constraction ymo loaned

mcney to these oorporatiaoet, le that right?

Mr . Trump Yes .

r. Toatio And invested, tot,

14, Sinoe Y, Yu Invisated $249,o, is that right?

Mr, Tosti, Oh, no, More than that,. The capital is about

that, though.

Mr. Simon. le that eactly right?

14r, Tosti. I don't know If it Is ezactly right, but

it Z about that* I ktiow it Is '72 plus about 151, something

like thatg which would bring up to the figLre you mentioned.

Xr. Trumpa We have stookholders Investments and loans to

the six corporations "W"W

Mro Tostia He is talking -

Mr, Trump.-- prior to th'e receipt of the first I.R.A.

parent by us, Is that what you are after?

Mr. Tostio Ie wants to know the capital $took first*

I assume. Is that right?

Mr. Simon, The equity In the ccmpny was $249,000, in

1 II~~- ~ U

.

01

; i Id
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that right?

Mr. Toati, Approximately, I would say that was about the

capital stock.

) Mr. Trump. The ttock itself.

Mr. Tosti The stock itself was approximately that.

Mr. Simon. You loaned the oorporation money?

Mr, Trump, Then there were loans to the corporation

prior to receiving any money from the PFH.A.

Mr. Simon. How much did you loan the corporation?

M. Trump. I don't believe we broke it down, but if

one is 249 it is very simple to make a deduction; total of

one million nine.

SMr. Simon. Was that all outstanding at one time?

Mr. Trump, Yes, all prior to the receipt of the first

payment from F .H.A.

Mr Simon. So you actually had the million nine out-

standing at one time?

Mr. Trump. Yes.

Mr. Simon, Was all of that, except the $2490000, in

capital stock, repaid to you?

Mr. Trump. I would say so,

Mr. Tosti, Yes. I believe all the loans have been

paid off.

Mr. Simon. All of this $1,923,000 hasbeen repaid except

the stook?
Mr Tooti. Right.

_ I _ _ _ I__ I
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Mr. Simon, Repaid with interest?

Mr. Tosti, I don't believe they repaid it with interest.

Senator Capehart. Don't you own that Prinoe Lake

Hotel in Prince Lake, Iil, or is that Tiaohman?

Mr. Trump, No. Tischman is another outfit. Fred

Trumpls my name.

Senator Capehart. I an looking at the wrong one, You

are Trump?

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Simon.

Mri Trump,

Mr., Tosti.

the accountant.

Mr. Trump.

Yes

Were those loans repaid with interest?

I don It believe so.

I don't know. We would have to get that from

I really don't recall.

I don Ot believe I did reoelve interest on

them.

Mr. Simon. Have either of these six corporations paid any

dividends or made any distribution since they were incorporated?

Mr. Trump. Not a dime.

Mr. Simon. Therehave been no distributions of any kind?

Mr. Tzrmp. No distribution, no,

Mr. Simon, Have any of the corporations loaned any

money to anybody?

Mr., Tr~mp. Loaned to anybody?

Mr', Simon. Yea, sior

Mr. Trump, Yes. I think we made a loan ---

S

A14

C-i- "~C ~ ~~e Ic--MIN-



303

Mrs Tostto, We have a few loans. Do y

the stockholders or loans on security Invest

or another?

Mr. Simons Loans to anybody.

Mrs Tostic Yes, There have been loans,

Mr. Simon* What are the, loans?

Mrs Tostis There io a mortgage loan I I

one or the bootk5. I don't Imovw what it is,

two or three hundred thousand dollara, which

='u. mean loans to

aents of one type

0 ow they got on

I think maybe

to secured by

a mortgage. It pays them a regular interest ,

M4r, Simon, What other loans have been made?

Mr o Tr'unp. That Is about all,

Mr. Tosti, That is about all the loans, They bou ht

two buildings*

mri, Simon. What are they?

Mr, Tosti, They bought Green Park, Easex and LIzooln

Gardens0

Mr. Simona What did they pay for those?

Mr', Tostia I would say -

Mro Trump0  They bought the stock and I would say that

was a hundred thousand each building,

Mrs Simon v One hundred thoucaand dollar in each building?

Mr. Trup* As an tinvestmeasnt, ye,

M, Tostio Rights

Mr.* SimRon 4 Other than operating expenses, have either
of the sixK Corpovatlone; pa%*PC - 3 :iorcj -o :aknybod-Y loane4 an

wr
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L_

Vhr222



ph23 304

money to anybody# made arq Other inVeStmenta?

Mrs Taumpw Yes, Occaaionally I borrow money for shoort-

term -- 90 dae or so$ on a note with interests and I pay

0 it
Mr, Simon, What rate of Interest?

Mr. Trump,, I believe four per cent.

Mr. Toeti.. I believe one note was threa and three".

quarters- whatever Mrs Trutmp paid to the bank to borrow money,

he pays to theme If he borrows money from them. He can borrow

at the Bank of KMahatta'a at tircee and ttree-quarterss instead

of borrowing it from the ~nkI of Manhattan, and he borrows frau

them and Lives them the note, It vill be a short-terms 6O00

or 90-d& affair.

Mr,* Simon * Do you owe now the company any money?

Mr. Trump, Noo

Mr* Simon# Roughl speaking, I don ut mean exact dollars,#

but about how muiOh cash does this company now have?

Mr. Tosti. As of today?

Mr. Judd* The six companies together?

Mr. Simon* Yes'

Mr. Tostio Over three and a half million dollars in

cash,

Mrs Tt~moo All In the OOmPany, plus Investments in

those two buildi.ngs et.

Mr. Simon. The invectmeil-co are a mortgage oi two to three

_ I_ ~ _ I
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hundred thousand dollr-ap and two bui ldings that you paid

one hundred thouanrd dollars for eachp is that right?

Mr* Tostis That Is ights

Mr4.w' Tunp. Yes, and how about the Essex mortgage?

Mr. Tosti. That In theone I had in mind. there its a

mortgage up there at Essex, two hundsd thousand or saosthing

like that. It has an am oization and Interest r'ate the

asane as any other private mortgage would have.

__ _ _ _ _=_ _~_,~Y__-l-~boom "TLi
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Senator Capehart. Let me say this: We did not put this

out, and we did not know about it until we read it in the

paper,

Mr. Judd. I am glad to know that, Senator. I think this

came from another part of the Federal Government, probably. It

may be the papers misinterpreted it.

Senator Capehart. We did not put it out. We knew nothing

about it until we read it in the paper. We will not put out

any figures or use any names until we have had an opportunity

to talk with people privately and get their story and their

facts.

Mr. Trump. Senator, I consider that personally a terrible

thing. We have close to 5,000 tenants. That could put me in

bankruptcy. If we went through the deal that the Gross Brothers

got on their Glen Oaks, their case has been decided -- they

had bad tenancy there; some lawyers wanted to make a name for

themselves, but that was thrown out, but this thing could put

me in bankruptcy with 5,000 tenants.

Senator Capehart, You have 5,000 tenants?

Mr. Trump, Yes, close to 4,500, 5,000.

Senator Capehart. How many projects?

Mr. Trump. All our holdings, F.H,A. and non-VFHA. The

story here is a builder with one of the best reputations in

the City of New York pockets four million dollars, and I

didn't even draw a salary out of the corporations. I think

U ------
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that is a very bad thing.

Senator Capebart. Did the mortgaging out amount to four

million dollars?

Mr. Simon. Approximately.

Mr. Trump. Mortgaging out isn't the right term.

Senator Capehart, I know, but you did have about fowu

million dollars more?

Mr. Trump. We received two million in rents prior to the

18-month period that F.H.A. allows us.

Mr. Judd, I think it is how it is described in bookkeep-

ing. It is quite a complicated question.

Senator Capehart. Where did the figure four million

that appeared in the paper come from?

Mr. Toati. They probably found our cash balances,

M. Simon. The P.H.A. release is four million dollars.

Mr. Judd. That came from the difference between the

P.H,A reported construction cost, the FHA. release, and the

amounts of the loan.

Mr. Tosti. That is right.

Mr. Judd. We say in addition to the construction cost

we had to pay carrying charges during construction, legal fees

that we were entitled to under P.HOA. regulations to be ore-

dited with;speoific amounts for our arohitects, fees here.

Senator Capehart. Is that the figures heYe?

Mr. Judd. Yes,

0
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Senator Capehart. In other words, the construction cost

was three million two?

Mr. Tosti. That is right.

- Senator Capehart. Then you had another $800,000 worth of

costs?

Mr. Judd. That is right.

Mr. Tosti. This figure would be the figure you would read

normally on an income tax statement, but we paid FH.A. this

out in cash, we paid real estate taxes for 18 months, interest

for 18 months; we paid these items for insurance and carrying

charges, and items in the building, so these figures should be

added, This was paid out, legal fees, taxes, recording; these

two items were not paid out. These are the allowables for

P.H.A.

Mr. Trump. According to their regulations.

Mr. Simon. The $188,000 architects fees is the differ-

ence between what they actually paid .- they included in this

three million figure what fees they actually paid and take

credit down here.

Senator Capehart. Did FPH.A, allow you five percent?

Mr. Trump. That is the regulation, take five percent

* builders' fees

Mr. Judd. That is the figure which appeared on the pro-

ject analysis which was prepared by F,H.A. and signed by their

appraisero

- - - -- r;- - --- i-
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Senator Capehart. This doesn't account for four million

dollars.

Mr. Simon. That is Just one of them. There are six of

them.

ME, Tosti. They only used this figure.

Senator Capehart. I see,

Mr. Trump. You will have to say we received two million

in rents. Would that have a bearing on it?

Mr, Simon. I don't think so. If you take the difference

between what they actually paid for the construction of the

building and subtract from that the amount of the mortgage, you

end up with pretty close to four million dollars,

Senator Capehart, I see.

Mr. Simon. One of the problems, Senator, is that on their

own books they took these taxes and interest as operating ex-

penses for the first year of operation, and did not on their

tax returns include that as cost of the building, so F.H.A.

did not include them because they did not, and these two items

were never paid by anybody, and then they got a $%000 premium

on the mortgage, which, of course, P.H.A. would use to reduce

the cost of the financing,

iSenator Capehart, I see.

You considered the FH.A. fees, real estate taxes, and

interest on the building, and the insurance, and you included

that as expenses?

ur mm-T-~ ~~~:~-~~-----I--I'-~ ~'-~~~---'~"--~~~~
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M.r Judd. That is right.

Senator Capehart. As taxable expenses, etc., the first

year.

Mr. Judd. Yes.

There is another factor that enters in there. Under the

commitment we could not let anybody in to the buildings as

tenants until the 18 months' period was finished, and the

buildings were constructed. Because of the housing shortage,

and because we operated quickly, the P.HA. gave us permission

to put tenants in five months after we got the first advance,

and, therefore, we had some income during the first year

against which we could charge these. Maybe we saved taxes

then, but we are getting a smaller depreciation .allowance now

in consequence, so I think it washes out,

Mr. Tosti. Senator, allowing us those fees, the allowables

under F.H.A., our net out of the 16 million dollars came out

at approximately $500,000, or within three percent.

Now, I admit that we didn't take out the builders fee,

we didn't take out the architects' fee, but they were both

allowable by F.H,A,, and were computed in there in determining

the amount of the mortgage.

SSenator Oapehart. Did you make a mistake in taking

these as tax deductible?

Mr. Tosti. No.

Mr. Judd. We never tried to do that.

~'a ---- ~_ ~ -- -- r ~~ II~ ~I~IC'~-
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Mr. Tosti. We had rent income.

Senator Capehart. During the period?

Mr. Trump. Yes, during the original 18-month period set

aside by F.H,A. for construction of the project.

Mr. Tosti. Senator, what could have happened would be

that these buildings could have been completely unoccupied for

18 months. This would have been your picture, except that all

of this stuff would have been thrown back into this as addi-

tional construction, and under those circumstances it would

have been capitalized.

We, in our return, which I think we are permitted to do,

and is the proper accounting procedure, when we had rent income

we offset interest and taxes.

Senator Capehart. Has the Internal Revenue department

questioned whether this is a taxable item?

Mr. Tosti. Not at all.

Senator Capehart, Or should have been capitalized?

Mr. Tosti. This is capitalized, but separately. It is

not a depreciable capitalization. This is a write-off that

you do over a period of 33 years, but it is not a depreciating

item like this one is. The accountants set that up separately.

V Mr. Simon, They have all done this for income tax pur-

poses. They have treated taxes during the year of construction

and interest during construction as an operating expense, which

is a desirable thing, taxise, and permitted, but then when thV
>*
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do that it makes their mortgaging out that much higher, so for

one purpose they want to put it on one side and the other pur-

pose on the other side,

' F Mr. Judd. The reason I might say, Mr. Simon, mortgaging

out is not a crime

Mra Simon. Oh, no.

Mr. Judd. It wasn't even considered something that should

be a subject of criticism until just recently when there has

been a lot of publicity about it, and taxes are something real

and it had to be paid, and which I think there was a duty on

them to do.

Senator Capehart. You have three such as this?

P Mr. Tosti. Six. There were six sections of Beach Haven.

Senator Capehart. Six similar to this?

Mr, Tosti. Yes, except they are not all as large,

Senator Capehat. Did you have the same division on all

six such as this?

Mr. Tosti, Yes.

Mr. Trump, Here are two aerial photos, Senatoro One was

taken when the job started. This is to date the photo. This

is Coney Island Hospital, an old hospital. This is the com-

pleted project. There is the hospital again. We completed

that entire project,

Senator Capehart. How many units?

Mr. Trump. 1861 units, 31 elevators, finest construction,

mm-~C IC - NO No"
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100 percent rented; every week we get an offer to sell at much

more than the mortgages.

A Look at the dates on the back of this. This was taken --

to show efficiency in operation, that was taken in 1949; I

think the date is right here, October 2, 1949. Here is a com-

pleted project, which is already occupied, the first section,

which is 25 percent -- see the sidewalks and shrubbery are in

there, Eleven months later the entire project was built -

eleven months later, and we got -- P.HA. allowed us 18 months

in which to complete the project, and some builders cannot do

that in two years, but we drew two million dollars in rent

during that 18-month period.

SSenator Capehart, I do not see any land costs in there.

Mr. Simon. The land didn't go in. It is one of those

leaseholds.

Mr, Tosti. Senator, you might be interested in these

figures that I have got down here. As of today, we have re-

duced our mortgages by $800,000.

Senator Capehart. In payments?

Mr. Tosti, In payments.

I might point out that we prepaid principal a year in

advance in order to cut down the interest charges. We have

paid the P,H,A, $211,000 in fees. That is their insurance fee

and they never had to do five cents worth of work, except to

wait for our reports to come in to them annually.

..--- ,.-- . i - - I 1 - -I - ..
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Senator Capehart. That is the fees they charge?

Mr. Tosti. F.HA. insurance premiums.

Senator Capehart. That they charge everyone?

0 Mr. Tosti. That is right.

In addition, we may have on deposit in cash a replacement

reserve fund of $200,000, which is in Government securities

held by the mortgagee, no portion of which has ever been tapped

> we have never asked for a dime out of it to replace anything

in these buildings.

That is the picture, and the buildings are 100 percent

rented.

Senator Capehart. What did the land cost?

Mr. Simon. He saye he doesn't know.

Mr. Trump. I don't have the land cost. We bought that in

1944, and we bought another parcel a year or two later, and we

had some -

Senator Capehart. What did you put the land in for?

Mr. Trump, Whatever the P.HA. --

Senator Cape art. What is the rental on the land?

Mr. Trump. Sixty thousand a year.

Senator Capehart, You do not know how much the F.H.A.

appraised it at?

Mr. Trump. They capitalize at 4 percent, which is an

unfair capitalization.

Senator Capehart. Do you own any more land around here?
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Mr. Tosti. Yes. We still have a little bit left over.

Senator Capehart. Approximately what dd you pay for the

land?

Mr. Trump. I don't have the figures, Senator, It was

three or four assemblages in 1944 and 1945. We had legal

trouble. Land was under water, the bed of Coney Island Creek,

and there was a lot of things, but I will say this: It is

assessed today by the city under the equalization rate at

one million seven, and for tax purposes at $1,350,000. In

other words, they assess at 80 percent, so we pay taxes on

$1,300,000.

Senator Capehart. Do you think you paid as much as a

couple of hundred thousand dollars for it, or more?

Mr. Trump, Yes. We paid more than that. But the assessed

value, I believe, is more today that we pay taxes to the city.

Senator Capehart. Do they allow you four percent on the

appraised value of the land; is that right?

Mr. Trump, Yes.

Senator Capehart. You have a 99-year lease?

Mr, Trump. It is a 99-year renewal.

Senator Capehart. Did this project cost more than five

million?

Mr. Tosti. SiXteen million,

Senator Capehart. The whole project?

Mr. Tosti. Stiteen million dollars, the whole project.

... ..if,,,,!!I ...T ....... I .- _; - i -I- l - ! .. . . . ... i-........ ..... .
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Mr. Judd. The photograph includes all six units.

Mr. Trump. That is 1,860 families.

Senator Capehart. Is this so arranged that you can divide

it up into three parts and dispose of it?

Mr. Tosti. Six parts.

Mr. Trump. There are streets between each section, Eaoh

section is divided off by a street.

Mr. Judd. Senator, I think if you will let me say one

thing more, there are a couple of factors that seem to me

interesting here. I was solicitor general of New York State

at one time, and I passed on contracts for construction of pub-

lic housing. It coat an average of $13,000 a dwelling unit to

| put up public housing. Mr. Trump borrowed money on the basis

of $8,100 a dwelling unit, and wound up with some money left

over, so he did an efficient job in creating good housing.

If you take the dwelling units and divide the F.H,A, appraisal

of the land --

Senator Capehart, Let me ask you this: We have had a

number of people testify to that effect. Why is it when you

private builders go to build this public housing, why do you

charge so damned much?

SMr. Trump. We don't build for the Government,

Senator Capehart. When he does why does he charge so much

Mr. Trump. The fellow who does build them, he couldn't

build them for ten percent over $8,100 a unit. It is a dif.

I:
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ferent type of unit.

Senator Capehart. We have had a number of people use

the cost of their units in comparison with public housing.

My question is why cannot the private builders build for the

Government as cheaply as they can build for themselves?

Mr. Tosti. Fred, tell about your difficulty in trying to

get competitive building contractors on this job, and how you

have to work it out?

Mr, Judd. One factor, Senator, I think is the conflict

that exists between the contractor and the Government

inspector. I know in the State we always ran into cries for

extra work because of that friction, Where the builder is his

a own supervisor and wants to show he has a good building on

which he can make money, you save some of that,

Senator Capebart. Have you ever had any 207 or 217 pro-

jects?

Mr. Trump, 207, I own Luna Park in Coney Island.

Senator Capehart. Is that a 207?

Mr. Trump. That is supposed to be a 207.

Senator Capehart. That is an 80 percent, isn't it?

Mr. Trump. Yes. I understand rental housing is killed

as per the new bill, with your cost certification; if I have

to certify that my cost is the same as one of these public

housing builders# costs, or a builder with no credit, which put

one million nine into this job 'n money .- one million nine --
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before we drew a nickel

Senator Capehart.

from the F.H.A.

207 has been in the bill for many, many

years.

Mr. Trump, Nobody used it.

Senator Capehart. There has been quite a lot.

Mr. Trump. In the New York area there was nothing. Theve

was 608.

Senator Capehart. 207 was the same as 608 except you got

80 instead of 90, and it was value, or what was it --

Mr. Tosti. Replacement value or current cost?

Mr. Trump. Replacement rather than current cost,

Senator Capehart. You never built under 207?

Mr. Trump. No.

Senator Capehart, Why won t 207 work?

Mr. Trump. Now, you are talking cost certification.

Senator Capehart. No, 207 doesn't require that.

Mr. Trump. It is at 80 percent, and you must certify that

your costs of construction --

Senator Capehart. Not in the bill as it is today, but in

the existing bill there was no cost certification, It was

Title 207, 80 percent guaranteed mortgage, and the basis for

the mortgage was to be on value - I think I am right on that

r- ather than replacement cost.

Mr. Trump. Yes.

Senator Capehart. Why won't that work?

0
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Mr. Trump. That would work. It was Just coming into its

own, Senator. The two thousand a room was not quite enough. At

the present time the market is getting -- the rental market is

a little tough, and they want a little more than they had five

years ago. We contemplated putting two bath rooms in some of

the larger apartments. You cannot do that under the mortgage

limitation that we have.

Mr. Simon. If I understand these figures correctly, they

are approximately $1,500,000 on the six buildings of builders

fees and architects' fees that were not paid?

Mro Tosti. Approximately, yes.

Mr. Simon, But including the architects' fee and the

builders fee at the five percent amount, which they allowed,

and thereby including roughly one million and a half, that

wasn't even paid out, you still come out with total costs of

$1,200,000 less than the mortgage; is that right?

Mr. Tosti, I would say approximately, yes. If you don't

throw those figures out as being not paid,

Mr. Simon. No, including in your figures the million and

a half which you did not pay out, not throwing them out but

leaving them in, you have a receipt of $1,200,000 for all the

) costs.

Mr. Tosti. No, our figures come out at $578,000,

Mr. Simon, Taking the figure you call difference, plus

your mortgage premium?

L _
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Mr. Tosti.

Mr. Simon.

Mr. Tosti.-

at all.

Mr. Simon.

Not the premium. You can t count the pre-

Why not?

The premium has nothing to do with construction

I know, but you include in there your F.H.A.

fees

Mr. Tosti.

Mr. Simon,

because it is a

Mr. Tosti.

Mr. Trump,

we got four and

Mr. Simon

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Simon.

Mr. Trump.

Yes,

Isn't the only reason you got a premium was

Government-guaranteed mortgage?

No, not necessarily.

You paid a point 1 Florida, one point, and

a quarter points,

Everybody in New York got four and a quarter.

I don't think so.

Not all, but a great many did.

This job got more mortgage premium than any

other because due to its excellent location, due to its all-

time long-term investment, We got more premium than most other

builders,

Mr. Simon, Don't you think the premium resulted from the

fact it was a Government-guaranteed mortgage?

Mr. Trump. Partly. I can ahow you plenty of Government-

guaranteed mortgages that pay a point and a half.

Mr. Simon. Can you ohow me any non-Government mortgages

b15
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of four percent --

Mr, rumPp. , Premium, no.

,h MP. Simon. That pay premiums?

Mt, Simon. No, no non-Government.

Mr. Tosti. On small houses I can show you -"

Mr. Simon. No, this type.

Mr. Tosti. On small housing they were paying fou peercet

for non-Government loans, regular straight conventional loans.

Mr. Simon. I am talking about 15 million dollar loans.

Mr. Tosti. Look, they were either paying it on all loans

or not paying it on any loans. Whether it was Government-

insured conventional, or anything else, that is what they were

paying.

Mr. Judd. I think we are all talking a little bit on

speculation. It is the sort of question you would have to ask

of a mortgage broker in order to get a conclusive answer,

Mr. Simon. What X was leading toward, and I do not have

any doubt in my mind that the premium should be applied against

the FHA. cost, because you got a premium because you did pay

the F.HA, cost.

Mr. Judd. That is a matter of argument, isn't it?

Mr. Simon. That is true,

Mr. Trump, P.H.A. gave us the commitment. There was no

premium when they gave the commitment. The premium only

developed during the progress of the job.
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Mr, Simon. Except it developed from almost everybody up

there,

Mr. Trump. This one section --

Mr. Tosti. Wait a minute. It just didn't develop. That

is not so. As a matter of fact, two of these projects only

carried a 2 percent premium, and the other projects through

manipulation brought a four, and we were abl' to go back through

our own astuteness and get more. on the two we originally sold

at two, which has nothing to do with the F.HA. at all,

Mr. Trump, We started out at a two percent premium.

Mr. Simon. What I would like to know is, the F.H.A,

commitment could not Ihave been for more than 90 percent of the

estimated cost of the building, and including the fees, archi-

tectsa fees and builders v fees which you didn't pay in the

order of one million and a half dollars, the cost of construe-

tion was still substantially less than the mortgage.

M., Trump. Yes,

Mr. Simon. Part of that you said was the result of buying

things at a low price.

Mr. Trump. Very low, during the four-month recession

just prior to Korea.

Mr. Simon. What other reasons were there?

Mr. Trump. Part of it was due to our efficiency as shown

by these aerial photos taken at the time where we built 16

million dollars worth of housing for 1,860 families, in less
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than 11 months. We had them occupied in less than 11 months.

Mr. Judd. Is it fair to say, Mr. Trump, that in computing

costs for the average building, the estimators would allow for

a longer period of construction than you took --

Mr. Trump. Eighteen months.

Mr. Judd. And even the physical construction costs more

if it is spread out over a period of 18 months than if you can

accomplish it in a reasonable period?

Mr. Trump. Certainly, you have the same advantage.

Mr. Tosti. Credit, the time you made your contract, ull

of those things would greatly affect a cost estimate. I mean
r

a man who is building, who orders 2,000 bath tubs, is probably

going to get a better price than the man who buys 200 bath tubs

because they can deliver in carload lots to the job. Those

things are elementary,

Senator Capehart. Didn't the F.H.A. appraiser, of course,

know that in advance because it was an 8, 100 project or 608

project?

Mr. Trump. No, actually the F,H.A, costs they figured

had no bearing because the 8100 criterion is what carried it.

They might have figured higher. Maybe that five percent build-

eras fee, and five percent architect, brought the construction

coat so high that criteria four, I believe it is, that said

maximum mortgage 8100 -

Senator Capehct. Let me ak this question: How much

0
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cooperation did you give the P.H.A. appraiser?

Mr. Trump, We didn't give them any.

Senator Capehart. You didn't give them any?

SMr. Trump. No. We object to the appraisers, We were

short changed on that $60,000 a year. You have there reoap-

tured the $60,000, to liquidate in case we get a building.

Senator Capehart, You mean the P.H.A, appraisers, in

arriving at tho amount of this mortgage, would guarantee the

mortgage but never consulted with you at all?

Mr. Trump. No.

Senator Capehart. They arrived at that, themselves?

Mr. Trump. Are we talking land?

.Mr. Tosti. No. Senator Capehart is talking about their

estimation of the cost of the job, construction cost of the

job,

Mr. Trump. No. I will tell you how it works.

Senator Capehart. For example, somebody arrived,

finally, that when this building was completed you would get

a mortgage for -

Mr. Simon. Sixteen million dollars.

Senator Capehart. Sixteen million dollars,

SMr. Tosti. That is right.

Senator Capehart. Somebody had to sit down and figure

that all out. Who did it?

Mr. Trump. They had their cost engineers, but we praoti.

s-M
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cally knew in advance what the mortgage would be, because they

have, let us say, several hundred 608 Jobs come out of the

office, and we know they get 8100 a unit. Then we get -

Senator Capehart. My point is, did the P.H.A. appraisers

consult you in arriving at this?

Mr. Trump. No, because we got the maximum -

Senator Capehart. Did they arrive at it on their own?

Mr., Trump. Yes.

Mr. Tosti, Senator, we have in our office approximately

40 million dollars worth of these commitments at one time or

another, where the maximum -

Senator Capehart. Do you handle the mortgages?

Mr. Tosti. I am an attorney with different builders, not

with Mr. Trump, but other builders. Every one of these commit-

ments, if you were to set them side by side, the figures on

them are approximately the same, within two or three percent,

for construction costs, and everything else. They were using

some sort of a thumb rule over there to measure it up, if

it is 810 units.

Mr. Judd. Didn't they have the plans and specifications

in detail which were filed with your application?

, Mr. Trump, Yes.

Mr. Judd, And analyze those plans and specifications in

accordance with their cost experience?

Mr. Trump, Yes. What he means to say, he had a dozen

-____ U*J
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builders, they get the 8100, we see their plan and not what it

is. We get the rental plans from people of another project.

We know their room sizes. Beach Haven is a conventional room

size, large rooms, so we know if they get $8,100 as a matter

of fact we will get it on Beach Haven. You takethat for

granted.

Mr. Judd, Are your Beach Haven rooms larger than the

average?

Mr. Trump. Yes. That is-why it is one of the finest pro-

jects F.HA. has.

Mr. Judd, Can I aok you this while the Senator is here

How do the land values on the basis of FH,.A. recapture costs

) in this project compare with land values which you would have

for independent volume housing units?

Mr. Trump. I would say on Beach Haven we got less than

average. We have here -- you can divide it very fast --

1,860 units. We got about $800 a unit,

Mr, Tosti. Right,

Mr. Judd, When you say "we got" --

Mr. Trump. The Beach Haven project.

Mro Judd. That is the valuation which was used in the

recapture clause. It is not money you got?

Mr. Tosti, It is land value we are talking about.

Mr. Trump, We didn't get it. Their capitalization of the

$60,000 would be capitalized under their regulations at a
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million and a half. That is about $8,000 a unit for 1,860

units.

|^ Mr. Tosti. Eight hundred dollars a unit for 1,800 units.

Mr. Trump. I would say that is as low as any land value

because the rule of an appraiser is usually 15 percent of the

improvement, which would be $1,200 a unit.

Mr. Tosti. We might say this about that land value that

you mentioned, that Mr. Trump, prior to this time, had built

small homes, in 1944, 1943, 1945, on similar land - not very

far removed, -- and there our valuations by the V. A., F.H.A,,

of the same type of land for small homes, ran $2,000 a lot for

20 by 100,

Mr. Trump. This ws Brooklyn, near the subway, 40 acres

in Brooklyn, right near the subway. Probably that doesn't

mean much to you, Senator, it probably means less, I should

have sal, but 40 acres, one contiguous parcel in Brooklyn,

and if I knew this stuffing these newspaper headlines were com-

ing up, to smear one of the best reputations -- I built 2,500

one and two-family houses in Brooklyn and Queens.

Senator Capehart. How many?

Mr. Trump. Twenty-five hundred before 608 came out, and

9 I wish I had never seen a 608, because we would have made the

same money, and without this smear business here.

Mr. Tobti. We have room for 500 houses on this plot.

Senator Capehart. Would you build under 608 if it was
l
I t
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the law today?

Mr. Trump. Certainly I would build under 608. I wanted

to build under 207, but I hear you emasculated it. I own Luna

SPark, 28 acres, next to four subway stations. We have that

land laid out for a 207. I have four or five hundred thousand

feet in Jackson Heights, laid out for a co-op where we have our

certificate of eligibility, and an office built last January

waiting for this housing law to come out for a co-op for 1,100

apartments, so I have a co-op plan and a 207

Now, I feel that 207 will be killed.

Senator Capehart. Why do you object to cost certification?

Mr. Trump. I don't object if you have a cost certifica-

Stion that says you must certify that you have spent at least

the amount of the mortgage, without builders" fee, and without

architects fee.

Senator Capehart, Under the cost certification plan as

it is in the bill at the moment, you simply certify whatever

your actual costs were.

Mr Tosti. Senator -

Senator Capehart. If you pay the architect a hundred

thousand dollars, .you put down a hundred thousand dollars. If

you pay him $50,000, you put down $50,000,

Mr. Trump. The next paragraph, if your cost is less

than the F.H.A, used to determine the 80 percent mortgage, you

have to pay that differentiation off on the mortgage. That is

I lilllllliiil~-- FF_ IA
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the purpose of the cost certification.

Senator Capehart. The purpose is that when you get all

through, on the 80 or 90 percent --

Mr. Trump. To make sure it is 80 or 90 percent mortgage,

Senator Capehart. That is right If your cost was less,

you would have to apply the difference and reduce the mortgage.

What is wrong with that?

Mr. Tosti. Does this discussion have to go on the record?

Senator Capehart. I would like it to because we are writ-

ing up this bill and I want to get it in.

Mr. Tosti. Let us assume a project that has an estimated

value of one million dollars, and you come along and say "We

will give you a mortgage for $800,000," We say "Look, we don't

mind building it, we will give you a cost certification; any-

thing under $800,000 that the project costs, including all of

the physical improvements, off-site, builders fee, and archi-

tects' fee, allowable by F.H.A., we will pay back on the mort-

gage. We will reduce the mortgage by that amount." But we

don't want to say that we will pay back 80 percent of the total

cost of that construction, and pay back the differentiation in

reduction of that mortgage. In other words, 80 percent of the

original million dollars.

Mr. Trump, Builders build differently.

Mr. Simon. You are saying you want to end up with at

least a hundred percent mortgage.

1 11 ._ airrrrlarl____~-~.__ _~
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Mr. Tosti. We say if we are good and wind up building

the Job for the amount of a mortgage, we don't want to put in

another 20 percent.

__ Senator Capehart. Here is what the bill says, or what the

Senate intended it to say - the Congress meant it to say --

that we will guarantee on a million dollar project, that costs

a million dollars, $800,000,

Mr. Trump. That is right.

Senator Capehart. Meaning that you have to put $200,000

of your own money in it. You won't do it under those ciroum-

stances?

Mr. Trump, How do you get that back, at six and a quarter

percent return? If a fellow had $200,000 wouldn't he be orazy.

to put $200,000 in it and some bum --

Senator Capehart. You will be permitted to include the

$200,000 in arriving at what the rent should be,

Mr. Toetia A six and a half percent return for his

$200,000? We can go out and buy a taxpayer for $200,000 and

walk home with a 15 and 18 percent without even bothering to

build any piece of real estate,

Mr. Judd. Senator, I haven't studied the bill, but if it

is true that it requires the 20 percent stay in with a limi-

tation to a six percent return, it is comparable to the limited

dividend housing corporation laws, whbh we have had on the

books in New York State for 45 years. There have been very

h
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few limited --

Senator Capehart. You have no objection to the 20 per-

| cent remaining in or staying in as you call it if you can make

more than six and a half percent return in rents; is that

right?

Mr. Tosti. We say if we can build it out at any certifi-

cation you want, including those figures, and.we build it out

at any place under the amount of your mortgage, that differen-

tial we will throw off and reduce the mortgage, but we want to

be compensated for efficient building. That is what it amounts

to.

Senator Capehart. What do you mean compensated for it?

Mr. Tosti, We feel we can build better than anybody else.

Everybody else doesn't have the same pattern,

Senator Capehart. Where you confuse me is you continue

to own this building. You have got to pay back the million

dollars. It is yours.

Mr. Tosti, We have to pay back $800,000 because it is

., only $800,000 mortgage.

Senator Capehart. All right. You have to pay back the

$800,000 mortgage, and it is your building. It seems to

me like the less the mortgage the better you would like it.

Mr Tosti. That is not true, Senator, Let me point some-

thing out: It is a misconception that the buildings with small

mortgages are better buildings to operate. Every one of these

l._.,
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608s will have to be refinanced in 14 years. Do you know that?

Senator Capehart. Every one of them?

Mr. Tosti, Every one of them will have to be.

v Senator Capehart. Including these?

Mro Tostio Including these, if they use the declining

balance method of depreciation,

Senator Capebart. You mean under existing law?

Mr. Tosti. Under existing law it will be most uneconomical

to operate them after 13 years under this set-up.

Senator Capebart. Under the law in which they were built?

Mr. Trump. We are getting far away from the new bill.

Senator Capehart. That has a bearing on it,

Mr. Tosti. The idea to keep these mortgages up

Mr. Trump. There will be nothing to worry about in

refinancing, as F.H.A. figures a million dollar cost you get an

eight hundred thousand dollar mortgage. The builder must cer-

tify the project cost a million dollars. He would be investing

$200,000 at a six and a quarter percent return, No builder

would do that, no real estate man would buy a piece of real

estate; he would buy telephone company stock and he would clip

coupons. No, 1.

No, 2. We may have --

Senator Capehart. What return do you want? You say you

won't do it for six and a half. What would you do it for?

Mr. Trump. Our buildings throw off 12 and 15 percent, Nd

.
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?.HA. buildings, because we expect to get nothing. If we get

amortization of mortgage out of there we are satisfied, only

amortization of mortgage; but our conventional buildings throw

off 12 and 15.

Senator Capehart. What you are saying, then, if we want

to use this cost certification system, and this 80 percent

guaranteed mortgage, we are going to have to permit you to earn

more than six and a half percent?

Mr. Trump. I would say this --

Senator Capehart. In other words, it means the rents are

going to have to be a little higher; is that what you mean?

If we did that would you be happy?

Mr. Trump. No. I think it can be better than that. If a

builder invests in a million dollar job, 120 families, $200,000,

he is out of business for 15 years,

Senator Capehart. What do you mean?

Mr. Trump. Because he has his $200,000 tied up in the

building. He can't go ahead, If he wanted to build another

building he would have to have another $200,000

Senator Capehart. Do you mean to tell me we have g6E'to

the point in America where private industry won't take any

0 chances at all in the building business and the Government has

to take it all?

Mr. Judd. They would take chances if they could get a

return,
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Mr. Trump. They don't have the money. We are penny ante

in the building business.

Senator Capehart. You are pretty big, aren't you?

w Mr. Trump. What we do at $8,100 a unit, forget about the

abuse, what we do at $8,100 a unit, public housing costs

$12,000.

Senator Capehart, In every instance private industry

builds public housing. We are going to get into why public

housing costs so much money.

Mr. Trump. To keep the builders in business who don't

have unlimited funds, and for a fellow to tie up $200,000 he

just won't do it. To keep him in business I would suggest a

Cost certification along these lines: Million dollar P.H,A,

cost, eight hundred thousand dollars mortgage. The builder

must certify, and F.HoA. check his books, and you will work up

a formula that he cannot pad, and that that building must cost

him in money that he has spent $800000 - at least $800,000,

exclusive of builders' fee, exclusive -- and exclusive of

anything he didn't pay the architect, In other words, if he

pays his architects five percent, that is one thing. If he

[ pays them five-eighths of one percent, the exact expenditures

go in there, Then the efficient builders - some builders have

better credit ratings. Others build faster, Here is a ten-

month job. Somebody would take two and a half years.,

----. . Senator Capehart. I presume where I get confused in
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talking to you gentlemen is I have never been in the building

business, and I seem to get confused because it looks to me

Ia ̂like I was under tho impression you were interested in building

these apartment buildings, renting them, and making your money

on the rent, but it seems as though you are not interested in

making your money particularly off of the rent,

Mr. Trump. We are.

Mr. Tosti. Ihat I was trying to explain was why these

mortgages, and I think that is important --

Mr. Simon. What was the operating profit of these

buildings in 1953?

Mr. Tosti. On Beach Haven No. 1 -

SMr. Simon. Can you give it to me for all six?

Mr. Tosti. For Beach Haven No. 1, ending April 30, 1954,

it had a net operating loss of $23,255. That is after depre

ovation has been taken out. I assume you want the net operating

loss?

iP fls
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Mr. Simon. What I am trying to get at in reverse fashion

is, you now have cash, or investments of four million dollars

in these six companies?

Mr. Tostia That is right.

Mr. Simon. I want to know how much of that is operating

profit sinoe the construction of the building and how mach of

it is the mortgage --

Mr. Toati. In order to determine that, you have got to

take the amount of depreotation, deduot fiom depreciation

the yearly amortiation and then determtue it all over because

what you; are looking for ai a met assh increment and that

I can't give y= that way.

Mr. Simon. You don't get cash cut of epaeriatie?

Mr, Tosti, Yea, you certainly do get plenty Of Oash

out of depreciation.

Mr. Simon. Except in the sense it saves you incme tax?

Mr. Judd. No, more than that.

Mr. Tosti, It is money iB the bank. A lot of this oaney

may be depredation money. That is a sh nows

Mr. Trump. We operated for three years and let's say

we took an average of four per cent depreciation or three

per cent a year an sixteen million dollars,

Mr. Tosti We have $480,000 in cash from depvetiation

in the bank, so in order to give you the net, I waLid have
to take -- because amortization is not included as a aeduetion

c-I"LY-ra.lur ruu- -rrr-i--~__
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in figurinsg profit and loss.*

Mrv Simon. But your amortization reduces your depSecation?

Mv roostIl That Is right* So 7Mu take depreciatiam

subtract amoztization frm it# anid either add or subtrvact

the profit or logo and that gives you the not cash amrniia1

inremerit Now I mean over the three years I coulftI 't

possibly give it to 7ou today -- I could figure out that

net cash ient, br tut I can't tell you here. This one, for

example, shows $23,000 lose this 7arv The depreciation

however, on this partioular bu udingw a $115,00, so that

the net cash Increment in this case amotmted to $82$QO,

Nowx from the $82,000, you would take off the amrtisati0a

that was paid outo, beauae that io not reflected in hero.

Mr, Simo*e What was the amortization?

Mr* 'rToti* One amd a half per cent of the face amount

of the mortgage which approximately in Beach Haven 1, 1

would say, it ran about $60,000

Mr, Simoon. So you would have a 42DpOO oash inavraseuw

Mr* Tosti, That is right, approximately $20,000 cash

Increment,

M. Simons WIat I am trying to find out#, Senrats tos

they have four million dollars oash-v eourities, I triod

to find out hawf muoh of that represented accrual from

operations of the bulldi.ng in the last three years, ansd how
much of it repreoseoted proceeds of the mortgage that they'

S
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had disbursed cit of the corporatLon, beoauu. there have

been no dividends*

Senator' Capehart, You haven't paid any divarideds on
y7= stock?

Mir aToat o Nne at Beach Haven.

Senator Capehart. How ucth is the stocks?

Mr* Siimtono A quarter of a million dollars.

Senator Capeha't* You actually put in $250,000 *ash
to start with?

Mrs Tostie That is right,

Senator' Capeharta They have four million in *ash ad

securities,

When did you start operating the business?

Mr. Toti. 1949.

Mr. Trumpa That was the c i itiom of It in October', 1949,
and 11 months later, September, 195o we had the project

built and aEsted,

Senator Capehart. How long has it been occupied, for' four
or ffive years?

MrI. Trump, That is right.

Senator OapeBaZrt. You have been paying pretty big taxoss
haven't you?

Mr. Trump* One million two real estate tax. Do yca have

I'. Toitl I don't think I have given him that.

I I-"i"
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Senator Capehart. How about Federal income tax?

Mra. Simon. No Federal income tax; none whatever.

j Mr. Trump. We haven't had to pay anything out at all*

^ Senator Capehart. You have been paying real estate?

Mr. Toatt. Ye, about one million two hundred thousand

in real estate taxes. We did pay income taxes. Some of these

companies had a profit in it. It wasn't a lot of money, but

there was income taxes paid.

Mr. Simon. By taxes you are talking about two, three,

four hundred dollars?

Mr. Toati. No. I am not talking two, three, four hundred

dollars. I think on one it is running eight or ten thousand

dol are.

Mr. Trump. Operation?

Mr. Toati. Yes.

Mr, Trump* You will get your heavy taxes in the next five

years because of depreciation.

Mr. Toeti, That is what we ijee discussing before heavier

income taxes are now going to come to the fore in these pro-

Jecta.

Mr. Simon. Mr. Trump, was there a mortgage on the feet

li Mr. Tosti, No.

Mr. Trump. No.

Mr. Simon, Have you any other 608 projects other than
this one?

r " ._ _
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Have you been in any other 608s8?

Yes, we own two in Flushing that we said we

Simona Is that the Green Park, Essex, and Lincol

Trump.

Simon

Tostl.

Trumpet

Tosti.

Simon.

That is right.

They, I take it,are quite mall?

138. They are three million apiece.

No, a million and a half apiece.

There are 168 apartments apiece.

You bought equity in each case for a hundred

thousand dollars?

Mr. Tosti. Just the stook

Mr. Simon. You bought all the stock?

Mr. Trump. Yesd

Mr. Simon. Have you been -in any other 608 oa?

Mr. Trump, Shore Haven.

Mr. Simon, Where is that?
Mr. Trump. Brooklyn aleo, about a mile or two from this

-__ a -_
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Mr. Trump. Yes. We just finished one a short time ago,

the Wexford Hall, Inc.

Mr. Simon. Did you mortgage out on that?

Mr. Trump. No, we had to put money in that because

our contract prices - that was after we got these favorable

contractsa our contract prices were more and we had to put money

into it.

IIY__1_
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million figure.

Mr. Trump. DonIt

Mr. Toati, It is

on these Beach Havens,

that.
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other proeot.

Mr. Simoa.

Mr, Tosti.

Mr. Judd.

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Tosti,

Mr. Simon.

Mr. Trump.

Mr. Toati

Mr. Simon.,

Mr. Trum=p

Mr. Simon.

Mr,.Trump.

Mr. Tosati

slightly under, some place in the nine

gueas

hard to guess. I thought we were jast

I haven't knocked any figures otff m

Mr. Trump. That is the onl on wewe got publicity on,

Mr. Juddh We have been working nights trying to get out

income tax returns and other things to know what is of record

already. *

Mr.7 3s Hav yu. beel in ny other 6084s?
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Did that mortgage out?

Yes.

Accepting your definition of "mortgage out."

We didn'timortgage out on any of them
definition

Not in your / . e didnt mortgage out,

What was the mortgage in Shore Havew

1 344 unite, about ten million dollars,

About ten million dollars

What was your actual cost of construction?

I don't have any figures on that.

Was it more or less than ten million dollars?

More or less -- I imagine it was les?

Yes, The mortgage -- the actual construction
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of eligibility the end of January, but we withheld it pending

Mr. Trump, No.

Mr. Tosti. How about the Norfolk, Virginia, job during

the war?

Mr. Trump. That is so long ago I don't remember.

Mr. Simon. I take it we are not going back beyond the

end of the war, but aince the war, have you been in any other

but Beach Haven, Wexford, Green Park Essex and Lincoln

Gardenaand the two you purchased which you had nothing to do

with building?

Mr. Trump. That is right.

Mr. Simon. Is Mr. Tomasello your partner in Wexford and

Shore Haven, too?

Mr. Toasti No.

Mr. Simon. Is he a builder?

Mr. Trump, He is a brick contraotorj yes, he ii an old-

time property owner.

Mr. Simon. He put up 25 per cent of this?

Mr. Trump. That is right.

Mr. Simon. I have no more questions, Senator. Do you?

Senator Capehart. You don't have any 213s?

Mr. Trump. I have 1100 unite projected. As soon as the

new law comes out we will start selling,

Mr Tosti. We have the law but no commitment,

Senator Capehart. Have you got a Oommitment from FJH.A.?

Mr. Trump. Wait a minute. We could have had a certificate

1- 'Y- '-(--i~---ll~ -I I - I~"^l------" l -ri.Li--- _~ 11___~441*1- 1~---~--~_*I-LII~LII~I_-tl _l__~__i_
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the new legislation. Our office is up, cmr exhibits are in

the office, and we have been waiting since the end of January

for the new legislation, 1100 units.

Senator Capehart. Prior to that, you didn't have any?

Mr. Trump, No, no oo-ops, no.

Mr. Judd. There are two things I would like to mention

on the record. I think they are important.

One 8i the matter of personal guarantee. Do you know

the amount of personal obligation tha,' you undertook in

connection with these Beach Haven projects?

Mr. Trump. As I mentioned, and I believe we gave yo a

statement, we invested between capital and loans to the Beach

Haven corporations prior to receipt of any money from F,H.A.,

one million he, but I also went on a personal guarantee with

?F..A for every dollar that I owned, so in addition to the

million nine --

Mr. Simon. 'Personally guaranteed what?

Mr. Trump, We had to personally guarantee oompletion of

the project,

Mr. Tosti. There is an indemnity agreement.

Mr. Judd. Prior to F.HoA.A had it been your practice to

give personal guarantees?

Mr. Trump. I would never give a personal guarantee. I

would stay out of a deal or pay more money for something rather
than give a personal guarantee, but the P .H.A. regulations
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and the housing shortage prompted me to give a personal

guarantee.

Mr, Simon. In that you merely guaranteed to complete

the building?

Mr. TrZup, Yes. Anything could have happened, As I

mentioned on lumber, we started out at $70 and wound up at

$110 on the snae project.

Mr. Judd. If you had been delayed for a strike and had

to meet carrying charges and increased cost, you would have

been liable?

Mr Trump. That is right. In addition to the million

nine we had invested in loans or investments,the personal

guarantee meant much more than the one million eight thatib

laid right on the line before we started this job, and to feel

that it windup like this newspaper publicity is a very bad

situation because we did all right before P.H.A. came along

right in Brooklyn, and we will still do all right even without

S.F ,A .

I don't like to say its but when I read that story

where no distribution has been taken, it really houses up

a good reputation,
the

Mra Simon. Of/ one million eight, $249,000 was capital

and the rest loans?

Mr. Trump. Loans to the corporation prior to receipt

of any money fom ?.H.A,

M3r Simon Whicl were repaid out of the mortgage?

U



ph10 345

Mr. Trump. Yes.

Mr. Judd, Did your Beaoh Haven Project win any awards,

Mr. Trump. Yes We had an award, I don't remember, for

excellence and design. We got a medal, but that has no

bearing; no part of F .HA,

Mr. Simon, Mr. Juddwould you get me the gift tax

return and that appraisal that went with it, or the

treasurer's estimate?

Mr. Judd. I will get you the treasurer's figure at any

rate,

Mr. Trumpa What bearing would that have on it? I don't

understand.

Mr. Simon. It is the same year in whioh you got the

F H.A. commitment and I am interested in knowing whether the

valuations are the aame or whether they are substantially

different.

Mr Judd. You are not trying to double-check on the

treasurer, are you?

Mr. Simon, We are trying to find out what the facts are.

Mr. Judd Our position, Senator --

Mr. Simon. Mr. Trump bought this land during the war.

In 1949 he made a gift of it to his children, and had it

W appraised for thatpurpose, and then the same year they got

Sthe F.H.A. commitment in which there was a value put on it

for this rental purpose.

>W4
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Mr. Tramp. I think the year before we gave it to them.

Mr. Simon. You set out 1949 here.

Mr. Trump. I don't remember the dates.

Mr. Tostt. I believe the gift was completed in 1949.

We started to work on it in 1948, before Bill Hyman died.

Mr. Trump. My attorney died in the meantime, He

started two years prior to it and died.

Mr. Simon. We would like to know the date as of which

that valuation occurred and the date as of which FH,.A.'s

valuation occurred and the difference.

Senator Capahart. The Interal Revenue Department ia

furnishing us with most o ou figures and you can rest assured

of one thing, and that is that they are going to take a look

at all the figures that we have.

Mr. Trump. They have checked us.

Senator Capehart. We have men on our investigating

staif from the Internal Revenue Department, so whatever you

have we would appreciate.

Mr. Trump, They are welcome to it<

Senator Capehart, The facts speak for themselves.

Mr. Tosti The question of valuation people argue

day and night and they will never come to the same conolulaon as

I have found out.

Mr. Simon. I donut want to argue that. I wanted to know if .

you would give it to us.

'. 
i''^
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Mr'. Tostiv One valuation Is tmadepas I sayp as of the day

of a gift In Aucgists 1949* Th~e others valuation is made me

the baois of a aampleted straotLV6 or' oi a oompleted project,
whc Is two or~ three years later Thiat Is what it aaouiito to.

(Wereupons aft 3:32 0~1100k P*iM., the Committee adjourn~ed

to the call of th~e chaiz',)


